
 

- over - 

REVISED 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 25, 2022 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jan 25 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 25 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 8 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. MOMENT OF PRIDE 

 
E. CONSENT ITEMS: 

Minutes – January 11, 2022 – Annual Organizational Meeting 

Minutes – January 11, 2022 – Annual Board of Finance Meeting 
Minutes – January 11, 2022 – Public Work Session 
Minutes – January 11, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting 

Claims 
Gift Acceptance 
Fundraisers 

Conference Leaves 
Grants 
Personnel Report 

 
F. OLD BUSINESS 

 

 COVID Update 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Administrative Regulation KI - Application for Fundraiser Approval – The Administration 

presents Administrative Regulation KI – Application for Fundraiser Approval for initial 
review.  
 

 Resolution – The Business Office asks the Board to take action regarding a Proposed 
Lease, approving the Issuance of Bonds and Related Matters. 



BOARD AGENDA January 25, 2022 
 
 

2 
   

 
 Resolution - The Business Office seeks approval of the First Amendment to the 

Installation Contract with Performance Services for Mary Daly Elementary along with the 
Performance Guarantee Agreement. 
 

 Resolution - The Business Office seeks Board adoption of a Resolution for the approval 
of the Cycle 3 restatement of the ECS 401(a) plans 002, 005 and 006. 
 

 Financial Report 
 

 Year-End Appropriation Transfer 

 
 Insurance Update 

 

 2022 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration presents the revised Board Meeting 
schedule for 2022, for approval. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 11, 2022 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

6:20 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 

Present: Douglas K. Weaver Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

  Kellie L. Mullins 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen 

Via Electronic Troy E. Scott  

Communication:   

   

ECS Staff Brandon Eakins Kevin Scott 

Present: Tony England Brad Sheppard 
 Mindy Higginson Sarita Stevens 
  Steve Thalheimer 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented the Standards Based Grading and grading 

practices from the Elkhart High School team comprised of Cary Anderson, 
Principal; Brad Sheppard, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction, JeNeva 
Adams, Principal, the Freshman Division and Brian Bennett, Professional 

Learning Coordinator. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:55 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 11, 2022 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 7:00 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
  Kellie L. Mullins 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen 
Via Electronic Troy E. Scott  
Communication:   

 

Roll Call 

Outgoing President Rocky Enfield called the meeting to order and the pledge was 
recited. 

Call to 
Order/Pledge 
 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board elected Dacey Davis to serve as 
president, Troy Scott to serve as vice president, and Doug Weaver to serve as 
secretary of the Board of School Trustees for 2022. This election is in 
accordance with the Board’s long standing rotation schedule.  
 

Election of 
Officers 

Three Board members: Roscoe Enfield, Troy Scott and Douglas Weaver, 
publicly disclosed potential conflicts of interest. (Codified Files 2122-88) 
 

Conflict of 
Interest 
 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board adopted an organizational 
resolution naming Kevin Scott, treasurer; Erica Purvis, deputy treasurer; copy 
fees; officers and members of the Board of Finance shall be the same as the 
officers and members of the Board of School Trustees; Board member 
compensation; cash management provider is Lake City Bank; Legal Counsel is 
Barnes & Thornburg; legal notices to be published in the Elkhart Truth and 
Goshen News; mileage rate is $.585; and bond amounts.  (Codified File 2122-
89) 
 

Resolution of 
Board of 
School 
Trustees 
 



 

 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:10 p.m. Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 
 
______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

 

Signatures 

 



 
MINUTES OF THE 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF FINANCE 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

January 11, 2022 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approx. 7:10 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
  Kellie L. Mullins 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen 
Via Electronic Troy E. Scott  
Communication:   
   

 

Roll Call 

Outgoing President Rocky Enfield called the annual meeting of the Board of 
Finance to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing 
the Treasurer of Elkhart Community Schools to invest funds from the 
depository balance instead of from a specific fund balance in accordance with 
the provisions established by Indiana Code 5-13-9.6. 
 

Resolution 

Board members were provided with an investment history report reflecting 
no investment activity during 2021 and the Investment Policy. 

2021 
Investment 
History and 
Policy 
 

Per Indiana Code 5-13-7-8, Superintendent or designee needs to provide a 
report to the Board of Finance to assess the financial condition of the school 
corporation.  Kevin Scott, Chief Financial Officer, presented the financial 
indicators report. 
 

Financial 
Indicators 
 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:20 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________ 
  Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
  ____________________________ 
  Doug Weaver, Secretary 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

January 11, 2022 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
7:20 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
  Kellie L. Mullins 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen 
Via Electronic Troy E. Scott  
Communication:   

   
 

Roll Call 

As in past practice, outgoing president Rocky Enfield called the regular 
meeting of the Board of School Trustees to order. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Board member, Doug Weaver, recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Enfield discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Brandon Eakins, Director, Elkhart Area Career Center, presented the 
Moment of Pride.  Hot Rodders of Tomorrow is a career and technical 

education student group that gives students the opportunity to begin 
careers in the automotive industry; scholarships are just one of the benefits. 
During the competition, they are exposed to potential future employers and 

industry experts at a young age, which opens the door to various 
opportunities in the automotive trade.  The EACC team advanced to the 
national finals event at the Performance Racing Industry show in 

Indianapolis this past December.  Teams have three timed runs to 
disassemble and reassemble a standard Chevy small block engine with hand 
tools.  There are guidelines that must be followed and time penalties 

assessed for errors.  Times are averaged to determine placement and the 
EACC placed 7th in the nation, culminating with a perfect run on their third 
attempt, which was only the 2nd of the entire competition.  Team members 

Luis Abrajan (Penn), Jonathan Skopec (Penn), AJ Brunson (Elkhart), 
Alexander Robakowski (Elkhart), Nestor Luna-Ramirez (Elkhart), and Isaiah 
Verde (Mishawaka).  Each team member earned $7,500 in scholarship 

dollars. 
 

Moment of Pride 
 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board approved the following consent 
items: 

 

Consent Items 

Minutes – December 21, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $12,854,382.34 as shown on the 
January 11, 2022, claims listing.  (Codified File 2122-90) 
 

Payment of 
Claims 

The following donation was made to Elkhart Community Schools 
(ECS): Donations of $500 from Edward F. Camp Wealth 
Management; $250 from The McCollester Group, Inc.; $200 from 

MORyde; and $500 from OBECO, Inc. to the EHS Cheerleading 
program; $400 from the Mary Abigail Rydson Memorial Fund 
through the Community Foundation for the EHS Swimming 

program; a $300 anonymous donation for the EHS Girls’ Track 
program; and a 2004 Honda CRV (owner valued at $750) from John 
Martens to the EACC to be used in the Automotive cluster. 

 

Gift Acceptance 

 
 

 
A settlement agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff 

member.  (Codified File 2122-91) 
 
Employment of certified staff member Sara Strack, grade 3 at 

Feeser for the 2021-2022 school year, effective 1/10/22. 
 

Resignation of the following four (4) certified staff members, 

effective on dates indicated: 
Michael Fritschi - business education at EHS, 12/22/21 
Joshua Nice - principal at Daly, 2/25/22 

Allison Schrock - grade 5 at Daly, 12/22/21 
Clarence Thomas - social studies at Freshman Division, 

12/22/21 

 

Rescinded the resignation of certified staff member, Allison 
Schrock. 
 
Leave for certified staff member, Mackenzie Bontrager, grade 3 at 
Beck, beginning 1/31/22 and ending 3/11/22. 

 
Employment of the following three (3) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Michael Chastain - custodian at Pierre Moran, 12/28/21 
Sherri Macigewski – food service at Commissary, 12/23/21 
Sarah Yoder – RN at Bristol, 1/10/22 

 
 

 

Personnel 
Report 

 
Agreement 

 
 
Certified 

Employment 
 
Certified  

Resignations 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Rescinded 
Resignation 

 
Certified Leave 
 

 
Classified 
Employment 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



3 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees, effective 
on dates indicated: 

Carrie Faught – food service at Daly, 12/13/21 
Sarah Fox – registered behavior technician at Riverview, 
  12/23/21 

 
Death of classified employee, Deanna Eick, paraprofessional at 
Roosevelt on 12/21/21. 

 
Leave for the following three (3) classified employees effective as 
indicated. 

Brittnee Taylor – food service at Hawthorne, beginning 
2/28/22 and ending 5/27/22 

Joseph Temple – technical assistant at PRIDE Academy, 

beginning 12/29/21 and ending 1/12/22 
Charlena Thompson – bus driver at Transportation, 

beginning 1/31/22 and ending 2/11/22 

 

Classified  
Resignations 

 
 
 

 
Classified Death 
 

 
Classified 
Leave 

 

Superintendent Thalheimer reported COVID numbers have seen an 
increase since the holiday break. 

 

COVID Update 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board approved and waived 2nd 

reading of proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.14S – Employees in 
Technology Services Positions Compensation Plan.  Doug Thorne, District 
Counsel/Chief of Staff, noted the proposed revision is merely a title 

change from Infrastructure Services Coordinator to Systems 
Administrator. 
 

Board Policy 

3422.14S 
 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board accepted a potential conflict 
of interest presented from Superintendent Thalheimer. (Codified File 

2122-92) 
 

Administrator 
Conflict 

 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board authorized the bulk sale of 

581 iPads having reached the end of their lifecycles. 
 

Sale of iPads 
 

Dr. Thalheimer welcomed staff back for the second semester and thanked 

Rocky Enfield for his year as Board president.  Dr. Thalheimer also noted 
this is the last Board meeting for Susan Ott and thanked her dedication 
and service to him, the Board and the district. 

 

From the 

Superintendent 
 

Each Board member commented and thanked Mrs. Ott for her service. 
 

From the Board 

  



4 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:50 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Dacey S. Davis, President 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 

  Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

Signatures 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

DATE:   January 19, 2022 
 
TO:       Dr. Steve Thalheimer  
             Board of School Trustees  
 
FROM: Brian Buckley/Jacquie Rost  
             Elkhart High School Athletic Department  
 
RE: Donation Approval – Cressy & Everett Real Estate 
 
A donation in the amount of $1,000.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School 
Boys Track Program from Cressy & Everett Real Estate. This donation will help 
with the continued growth and progression of our boy’s track program. 

We are requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this 
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is 
sent to: 

Cressy & Everett Real Estate 
Scott Hammontree 
945 E. Beardsley  
Elkhart, IN 46514 
 



School/Organiz
ation Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 
Activity

Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Young Adult 
Program/Hart 
City Coffee Co. 

Funds raised from mobile coffee sales will be 
used for student training and employment 
opportunities for the Young Adult Program. 

1/10/2022 - 
12/31/2022

1/14/2022 Maegan Banicki and Trish Hutchison

EACC/ Graphic 
Design

Spirit wear will be sold to help fun the 
extracurricular account. 

1/10/2022 -1
/29/2022

1/19/2022 Amber Kosar

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.





What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

 What is the 

amount

applied for? 

How will the grant funds be used and who 

will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant 

submission 

deadline?

Data Action Mini 

Grant

The Source 

Hosted by 

Oaklawn

Bristol - PRIDE 

Academy

Tina Miller $2,000 Purchase items for the Cub Cash 

Marketplace overseen by the 

school social worker - Tina Miller

The Cub Cash Marketplace hopes to impact 

three data indicators from the Child 

Dashboard: Absenteeism, School Safety and 

Disciplinary Incidents and Probation. Our 

project seeks to increase responsibility, 

excitement and positive behavior modelling for 

students. The goal is to nurture and reward 

good behaviors. Students will receive Cub 

Cash for good deeds, improving troublesome 

behaviors, or staying in class which they can 

redeem for items in the Marketplace. 

Additionally, the Marketplace will offer both 

necessities like hygiene materials that many of 

our at-risk students lack, and coping toys like 

fidget spinners to help students engage in 

school.

As a newly hired employee, I was not aware 

that prior approval was needed. The 

information was presented at a meeting and I 

followed through with the application process. 

The largest expense for the Cub Cash 

Marketplace will be the cart to house the 

items. Additional ongoing expenses will be 

linked to the inventory of the Marketplace 

and the development/production of the Cub 

Cash currency.

6/1/2022

STEM 

Acceleration 

Grant

Indiana 

Department of 

Education

Roosevelt STEAM, 

MS, 

Engineering/Techn

ology School of 

Study

Lisa Ernsberger & 

Greg Stover

$75,000 To expand STEM coursework and 

programs for students. Lisa 

Ernsberger & Greg Stover

ECS will continue enhancing educational 

experiences through project/problem/inquiry by 

expanding to include more middle and high 

school students along with high ability 

elementary students. Through in-depth, 

projects in the arts, social issues, engineering, 

and technology, as well as traditional 

curriculum, students will have continued 

opportunities to develop curiosity, analytical 

skills, collaborative relationships, and serve the 

community. Students will continue to gain 

valuable experiences and skills to thrive in the 

future.

TBD but will include: STEM/PBL Summer 

Training (training, materials, stipends); 

Materials, community partnerships

2/4/2022

Page 1 of 2 1/25/22 Board Meeting



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

 What is the 

amount

applied for? 

How will the grant funds be used and who 

will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant 

submission 

deadline?

Data Action Mini 

Grant

Oaklawn/ The 

SOURCE

Multiple Schools Krista Hennings $2,000 Training Minority Girls in conflict 

resolution and trauma informed 

care

Trauma informed is a pillar. Also, this group 

continues to struggle with each other during 

the school day. We have assembled a group of 

mentors to help guide these young ladies 

through the struggles of life. We will use the 

fund to take trips, college visits, make t-

shirts/apparel and for food.

We found out about it late and had to make the 

deadline.

Food  $100.00 

T-Shirts/Hoodies  $1,100.00 

Writing Materials  $250.00 

Field Trips  $500.00  

Awards & Certificates  $50.00

12/22/2021

AEP FIRST 

Robotics Grant

AEP EHS/ElkLogics 

Robotics

Nick Seidl $6,000 Funds from the grant will be used 

for travel costs, robot parts, raw 

materials, and competition entry 

fees. Nick Seidl will manage the 

funds.

Our FIRST Robotics program, ElkLogics, 

allows students to learn and apply STEM skills 

and knowledge, while also learning skills such 

as leadership, time management, and 

teamwork. Both of these support the district 

goal of having students "graduate 

career/college ready and life ready."

$2000 toward travel expenses, $1000 in 

robot parts, $1000 for raw materials 

(aluminum and steel stock). The remaining 

$2000 will either be put toward entry fees 

for the state championship if we qualify, or 

off-season invitational entry fees and off-

season prototyping if we do not.

1/28/2022

Page 2 of 2 1/25/22 Board Meeting



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Mrs. Maggie Lozano 

Date:  January 25, 2022 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding unpaid time. 

 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2021-22 school year: 

 

Kyle Bauer    EHS/Science 

 

Benjamin Chacko   Freshman Division/Art 

 

Benjamin Kitt    Freshman Division/Business Education 

 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend the approval of a maternity leave for the following employee: 

 

Jordan Deuel    Daly/Special Education 

Begin:  2/8/22    End:  4/8/22 

 

 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Rachel Fritschi    EHS/Mathematics 

Began:  8/10/20    Resign:  1/21/22 

 

Lisa Hassett    Elkhart Academy/Language Arts 

Began:  8/2/16    Resign:  1/28/22 

 

Shennendoah Hoffer   Freshman Division/Art 

Began:  8/9/21    Resign:  1/31/22 

 

Angela Williams   Hawthorne/Grade 1 

Began:  10/4/19    Resign:  1/14/22 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of an agreement regarding certification. 

 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Kathryn Bobson   Beck/Registered Behavior Technician  

Began: 11/2/21    PE: 1/19/22 

 

Ashley Colon    Woodland/Food Service 

Began: 9/23/21    PE: 1/14/22 

 

Kiesha Gates    Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 11/2/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Kristen Konecny   Beardsley/Therapist 

Began: 11/1/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Tina Miller    Pride Academy/Social Worker  

Began: 11/3/21    PE: 1/20/22 

 

Louis Morales    EACC/Technical Assistant 

Began: 11/1/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Adrian Murray   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 11/1/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Constance Seniff   Elkhart High School/Food Service  

Began: 11/2/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Jeffery Taylor    Building Services/HVAC Technician 

Began: 11/8/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

Peyton Tessely    Freshman Div./Paraprofessional 

Began: 11/2/21    PE: 1/18/22 

 

 

c. Re-Assignment – We recommend the approval of a reassignment of the following classified 

employee to a certified position effective 1/18/2022. 

 

Benjamin Kitt    Freshman Division/Custodian 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees:  

Amy Anderson    Bristol/Eastwood/Custodian  

Began 2/3/04    Resign: 1/14/22 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Dannae Brenneman   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 6/2/21    Resign: 1/28/22 

  

Stephanie Brown   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began 1/4/21    Resign: 1/27/22 

 

Kelli Garner    Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/12/21    Resign: 1/28/22 

 

Lois Grocke    PACE/Registered Behavior Technician 

Began: 10/4/21    Resign: 1/10/22 

 

Judie Jones    Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/14/20    Resign: 1/28/22 

 

Kimberly Jones    Freshman Division/Paraprofessional  

Began: 8/28/06     Resign: 1/7/22 

 

Sharmonique McDaniel  West Side/Secretary 

Began 11/25/19    Resign: 1/21/22 

 

Rebecca Miranda   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began 9/20/21    Resign: 1/21/22 

 

Jessalyn Rink    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began 8/16/18    Resign: 1/21/22 

 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee: 

 

Marsha Fletcher   Freshman Division/Custodian  

Began:  10/2/02    Retire:  1/31/22 

     19 Years of Service 

 

d. Unpaid Leave – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employee: 

 

Jamie Bontreger   Elkhart Academy/Social Worker 

Begin:  3/14/22    End:  4/1/22 

 

 

 



KI 

Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

Application for Fundraiser Approval  

School sponsored fundraisers must have the prior approval of the Board of School Trustees.  

Administrators seeking the approval of the Board must provide the following information to the 

Business Office: 

Name of School:  Date Submitted:  

Name of sponsoring group, club, class, etc:  

Name of employee responsible for the fundraiser:  

Phone number of employee responsible for fundraiser:   

Name of employee responsible for collecting proceeds from the fundraising activity (methods of 

payment allowed include cash and checks (no Paypal, Venmo, etc. or other forms of 

electronic payment accepted at this time):  

 

Description of the fundraising activity (include location if not at your school):  

 
Does fundraising activity involve the sale of food to students on campus?  Yes or No (circle one)  

If yes, does fundraising activity comply with the current USDA Dietary Guidelines for 

Americans or SMART snacks guidelines?  Yes or No (circle one) 

Start Date/Time:  End Date/Time:  

For what purpose will the proceeds from this fundraiser be used? 

  

Does the fundraiser require students to go door to door?  Yes or No (circle one) 

Are there any restrictions of the use of the proceeds from this fundraising activity?  

 
 



KI 

Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 

I acknowledge I have read and understand the policy regarding fund raising activities and sales 

adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community Schools and agree to abide 

by the same.  

Signature of employee responsible for fund raising activity: _____________________________ 

Principal Signature: _______________________________ Approved: _______ Denied: ______ 

Date Internal Control Video Completed by Sponsor:  ___________ 

Business Office Verification:  ________________ 

Business Office Signature: __________________________ Approved: _______ Denied: ______ 

Approved by the Board of School Trustees on                                           

 

June 26, 2018January 25, 2022 













































































































CASH:

     Petty Cash                                          500.00$                
     Lunch Change Fund 2,010.00               

BANK ACCOUNTS:

     Teachers Credit Union                                                       2,974,452.93$      
     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (425,638.07)          
     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                      (15,066.91)            
     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                          78,034.84             
     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                  -                        
     Lake City Bank – Prepaid Lunch                                        114,778.89           
     Lake City Bank – Deposit Account 42,226,254.32      
     Lake City Bank – Book Rental 262.36                  
     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00           

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                        
                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
December 2021

45,363,008.36$       



% of  total 
Budget

Total Expenditures as of 
December 2021

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget

81.15% 2,653,951.98 96.99%
Instruction - Regular 

Programs $2,736,365.57

0.16% 5,028.75 94.88% Support Services - Students $5,300.00

6.08% 183,245.00 89.39%
Support Services - 

Instruction $205,000.00

2.08% 73,538.59 105.06%
Support Services - General 

Admin $70,000.00

1.48% 1,472.00 2.94% Operations and Maintenance $50,000.00

0.42% 13,732.16 97.68%
Non-Programmed 
Charges/Transfer $14,057.60

8.64% 252,221.55 86.56%
Non Public School Allocation 

Transfer $291,374.40

100.00% 3,183,190.03 94.40% $3,372,097.57

ESSER I Utilization Review



0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000
2,653,952

5,029 183,245 73,539
1,472 13,732 252,222

2,736,366

5,300
205,000 70,000 50,000 14,058

291,374

ESSER I - Expenditure to Budget as of 12/31/21

Total Expenditures as of December 2021 Budget



Total Expenditures, as 
of December '21

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget

1,044,923.12 91.05%
Instruction - Regular 
Programs $1,147,607.00

64,841.49 6.94%
Instruction - Special 
Programs $933,959.00

418,279.05 84.95%
Instruction - Summer 
School Programs $492,382.00

47,466.77 19.36%
Instruction - 
Remediation Programs $245,190.00

84,707.80 22.19%
Support Services-
Students $381,811.00

337,468.27 30.19%
Support Services-
Instruction $1,117,687.89

105,683.07 100.66%
Support Services-
General Admin $104,995.00

121,211.77 88.55%
Student 
Transportation $136,886.00

101,433.27 28.47%
Community Service 
Operations $356,246.00

154,988.18 2.28%
Facilities Acquisition 
and Construction $6,804,736.00

$7,724.64 22.07%
Non Programmed 
Charges/Transfer $35,000.00

2,488,727.43 21.17% $11,756,499.89

ESSER II - Utilization Review



0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

1,044,923

64,841 418,279
47,467 84,708 337,468 105,683 121,212 101,433 154,988 7,725

1,147,607 933,959
492,382 245,190 381,811

1,117,688

104,995 136,886 356,246

6,804,736

35,000

ESSER II - Expenditure to Budget as of 12/31/21

Total Expenditures, as of December '21

Budget



YTD Expenditures as of 
December '21

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget
% of Total 

Budget

1,929,822.33 41.20% Instruction - Regular Programs $4,683,726.72 17.74%

543,822.76 138.49% Instruction - Special Programs $392,690.00 1.49%

36,426.94 100.42%

Instruction - Adult/Continuing 
Ed Programs

$36,274.00 0.14%

823.14 0.06%
Instruction - Summer School 

Programs $1,398,625.00 5.30%

61,946.27 4.04%
Instruction - Remediation 

Programs $1,534,501.00 5.81%

328,293.85 14.73% Support Services Students 2,228,127.00 8.44%

272,598.19 5.00% Support Services - Instruction 5,448,285.00 20.63%

24,476.66 6.04%
Support Services - General 

Admin 405,203.00 1.53%

447,659.23 12.59% Operations and Maintainance 3,555,243.00 13.47%

249,850.67 27.41% Student Transportation 911,601.00 3.45%

267,721.37 27.92%
Community Service 

Operations 958,804.00 3.63%

745,775.25 29.53%
Facilities Acquisition and 

Construction $2,525,707.00 9.57%

0.00 0.00%
Non-Programmed Charges 

Transfer $2,324,642.00 8.80%
$4,909,216.66 18.59% $26,403,428.72 100.00%

ESSER III - Utilization Review



0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

1,929,822

543,823 36,427 823 61,946 328,294 272,598 24,477
447,659 249,851 267,721

745,775
0

4,683,727

392,690 36,274

1,398,625 1,534,501
2,228,127

5,448,285

405,203

3,555,243

911,601 958,804

2,525,707 2,324,642

ESSER III - Expenditure to Budget as of 12/31/2021

YTD Expenditures as of December '21 Budget



EDUCATION FUND DECREASED INCREASED

11000 Instruction 32,540.03                           

14000 Summer School Programs 27,247.64                          

15000 Enrichment Programs 5,292.39                            

32,540.03                       32,540.03                     

REFERENDUM TAX LEVY DECREASED INCREASED

11000 Instruction 45.19                                 

21000 Support Services ‐ Students 12,644.34                          

25000 Central Services 2,525.40                            

26000 Operation & Maint of Plant Services 273,008.63                       

27000 Student Transportation 496,913.06                         

60000 Nonprogrammed Charges 208,689.50                       

496,913.06                     496,913.06                   

OPERATIONS FUND DECREASED INCREASED

23000 Support Services ‐ General Admin 183,707.79                         

25000 Central Services 312,334.58                         

26000 Operation & Maint of Plant Services 1,132,471.03                    

27000 Student Transportation 496,522.05                         

33000 Community Services 603,590.17                         

43000 Professional Services 58,701.04                           

47000 Purchase of Mobile or Fixed Equipment 522,384.60                       

1,654,855.63                 1,654,855.63               

RAINY DAY FUND DECREASED INCREASED

11000 Instruction 78,000.00                           

25000 Central Services 78,000.00                          

78,000.00                       78,000.00                     

TRANSFER APPROPRIATIONS
2021





 
 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Regular Board of School Trustees’ Meetings - 2022 

 
Regular meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 
 

A public work session is held at 6:00 p.m. preceding eachregular meetingin the J. C. Rice 
Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 

 
 

January  11, 2022 July  12, 2022 
 

January 25,2022 July  26, 2022 
 

February 8, 2022 August    9, 2022 
 

February 22, 2022 August  23, 2022 
 

March  8, 2022 September 13, 2022 
 

March  22, 2022 September 27, 2022 
 

April  12, 2022 October 11, 2022 
 

April  26, 2022 October 25,2022 
 

May  10, 2022 November 8, 2022 
 

May  24, 2022 November 22, 2022 
 

June  14, 2022 December 13, 2022 
 

June  28, 2022 December 20, 2022 
  8:00 a.m. 

 
Any changes to the regular meeting schedule will be determined by Board action and special 
notice of any variance in date, time, or location will be posted and mailed to persons who have 
requested the same. 
 
The annual Board retreat/public work session is scheduled February 24 and 25, 2022, time and 
location to be determined. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Administrative Assistant to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s 
administrative office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 

 
Revision sent to Board – January 25, 2022 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session - January 11 2022
	Minutes - Organizational Meeting January 11 2022
	Minutes-Board of Finance 2022
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - January 11 2022
	Gift Acceptance - EHS Athletics
	Fundraisers
	Conference Leave Requests
	Grants
	Personnel Report
	Administrative Regulation KI
	Resolution - Project Financing Resolution and draft Lease
	Resolution - First Amendment to Installation Contract and Performance Guarantee
	Resolution - Cycle 3 Restatement of ECS 401(a) Plans 002, 0005, 006
	Balance Sheet - December 2021
	ESSER I Utilization Review, as of 12-31-21
	ESSER I Expenditure to Budget, as of 12-31-21
	ESSER II Utilization Review, as of 12-31-21
	ESSER II Expenditure to Budget, as of 12-31-21
	ESSER III Utilization Review, as of 12-31-21
	ESSER III Expenditure to Budget, as of 12-31-21
	Appropriation Transfers
	Monthly Insurance Update
	Board Meeting Schedule 2022 Revised

